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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Conyerse College was chartered in 1889 and incorporated in 1896. During its first
session it had only one building, In September 1891 an additional structure, a
4~story brick building, known as the Annex was completed. It was located near
Main Building and connected to it by a covered passageway on the first, second,
and third floors. In January 1892 the Main Building was destroyed by fire;
however, the Annex was saved. The cornerstone of the present Main.Building was
laid April 21, 1892 on the site of the burned structure. The exterior of Main
Building, renamed Wilson Hall in 1929 in honor of the first president of Converse,
B. F. Wilson, is similar in design to that of the original Main Building. During
Converse's formative years Main Building served as a center for the school's
activities as well as providing dining facilities, faculty and student Tiving
quarters, classrooms, and administrative offices. The Annex, which served as
classroom, dormitory, and dining area until the erection of Main Building, is
today a dormitory. In 1941 it was named Pell Hall in honor of Converse President
Robert P, Pell.

Over the years Converse's enrollment has increased, and the facilities of the
school have expanded to meet the growing needs of the campus. Today Converse
consists of some 27 structures and has an enrollment of approximately 750
students. The historic district is comprised of six buildings on the Converse
front campus, the Towne House behind Pell Hall, and the alumni house (Cleveland
House) located across the street from the college.

Historic Structures within the Converse College Historic District:
1. Annex (Pell Hall): 1891, 4 stories, brick, central tower; oldest structure

within district; connected by 3-storied passageway to west wing gf Wilson
Hall.

2. Wilson Hall (Main Building): 1892, Richardsonian Romanesque,3 stories with
elevated basement, brick; central portico; east & west corner towers have
hipped roofs & 2-storied bay windows; towers repeated on either side of
central portico with eastern tower containing bell.

3. Twichell Auditorium: 1898-1899, 2 stories, brick; arches, designed by Charles
Hook ; auditorium enlarged in 1908; interior renovation in 1957; connected by
one-story bridge to east wing of Wilson Hall.

4. Dexter Hall: 1899, 4 stories, brick, entrance porch; originally contained
dormitory suites, gymnasium and later swimming pool and was originally
connected to Wilson Hall by covered passageway. Renovated in 1960 and
converted into dormitory.

(see continuation sheet)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

In March, 1889 a grou? of citizens met in Spartanburg to discuss the formation
of a "female school."! Concerned with the lack of educational opportunity for
young women in the Spartanburg community, these citizens spearheaded a movement
which led to the establishment of Converse College. Included among these
interested citizens was Dexter E. Converse, an influential leader of the textile
industry in South Carolina and the benefactor for which the college was named.
Also attending was Reverend Benjamin Franklin Wilson, Converse's first president.
Designed to provide a liberal arts education for young women, Converse was
founded during the years in which the importance of education for women was being
supported in the South through the founding of such institutions as Agnes Scott
(1889), Sweet Briar (1901), and Randolph-Macon (1891). Today Converse, with

an enrollment of approximately 750 students, is a 1iberal arts college with a
professional School of Music.

Although located in an urban area and within a modern campus complex, the Converse
College Historic District preserves the character of the original campus. The
district contains the oldest structure built on the campus, Pell Annex, as well

as other buildings which reflect the school's early history. Main Hall, a focal
point of the college both in its formative years as well as today, still remains.
Main Hall is an example of Richardson Romanesque architecture, a style not generally
seen in South Carolina. Judd Science Hall represents Gothic revival influence
while Carnegie reflects a classic design. Dates of construction on buildings
within the district range from 1891 to 1915. A1l but one are of brick. Situated
in a carefully landscaped area, the district possesses compatibility of scale and
material,

1
Landrum, Dr. J.B.0. History of Spartanburg County, 1900. p.62.
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5. Carnegie (Library): 1905, 2 stories, brick, entrance porch with pediment,
fluted columns with ionic capitals, central dome; today houses Development,
Alumni Affairs, and Public Relations offices.

6. Judd Science Hall: 1915, Gothic influence; 2 story brick with central
tower, window labels.

7. Towne House: 1898, 2 stories, brick, originally watercloset connected
to Main Hall; presently used as day-student center.

8. Cleveland House: East Main Street; ca. 1905, 3 stories, frame, one-story
porch; nhip roof; converted into alumni house in 1974,

Also included within the district is Gwathmey Library. Opened in May,
1951, this 3 story contemporary brick structure is compatible with
other buildings within the district and is not considered an, intrusion.
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